
 

6/18/2025 

TUSCARORA TOWNSHIP 
3546 S. Straits Hwy, Indian River, MI  49749 

June 19, 2025   6:30 PM SPECIAL MEETING 
PROPOSED AGENDA 

 
 
1. Call to order  
2. Pledge to flag 
3. Roll call 
4. Board member conflict of interest statement (if applicable) 
5. Public comment on agenda items (3 minutes per individual)  
6. Approval of meeting agenda 
7. Approval of previous minutes 
8. Reports 

a. Bills 
b. Tanner Electric 

9. Old business 
a. O & M Rates - Trustee 

10. New business  
a. DDA Appointments  
b. Parks Appointment 
c. Budget Hearing 

11. Public comments (3 minutes per individual) 
12. Board Comments 
13. Adjournment 
     
 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Minutes 

  



 

 

TUSCARORA TOWNSHIP 
3546 S. Straits Hwy, Indian River, MI  49749 

June 10, 2025   7:00 PM REGULAR MEETING 
PROPOSED MEETING MINUTES 

 
Call to order:  Supervisor Maves called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. and led the pledge of 
allegiance.  
 
Roll call:  Present:  Fisher, Maves, Smith, Hutchison, and Decker. There was a quorum. 
 
Board member conflict of interest statement (if applicable) Hutchison on 9d will abstain.  
 
Public comment on agenda items (3 minutes per individual) None. 
 
Approval of meeting agenda with the removal of 9c and add Steve from Performance Engineers 
before bills (8). 
Motion:  Fisher   Support:  Smith   Approved:  All in favor 
 
Approval of previous minutes of May 13, 2025 with no changes. 
Motion:  Hutchison   Support:  Decker   Approved:  All in favor 
 
Reports: 
Steve from Performance Engineers gave an update on the sewer system. 
 
Bills and revenue & expenditure report – new reports given to board members including payroll 
reports. A total of 29 bills to be paid for a total of $44,344.98. A question regarding Classic Cleaning 
bill. She is now cleaning 4 days a week.  
Motion:  Fisher   Support:  Smith   Approved:  All in favor 
 
Treasurer report – 18 bank accounts – 3 are not up to date pool, sewer, and library (because we need 
the bank statements for the library). Credit card system in the office went live today. Working on 
getting the ability to use a credit card at the boat launch.  
 
Correspondence – none. 
 
Airport – work continues on repairing the damage from the broken water pipe. 
 
DDA – Closing out the Streetscape loan with the USDA. Working on extending the pathway, summer 
music series mainly funded through donations, working on adding street acts to other spots in town 
this summer. DDA meeting 3rd Monday of the month at 7pm. 
 
FOIA - four 
 
Library-Kelsey Rutkowski, Director - summer reading program, June summer events, Secretary of 
State mobile office is here once a month from 9 – 3. July 11, Aug 4, and Sept 15. 
 
Parks-Beth Henderson - Looking to fill 1 full-time and 1 seasonal position. 40 hours per week Monday 
– Friday. Getting a scoreboard at Cooperation Park with the money from the Youth Grant. The truck 
and trailer in the parking lot are available through bids. Removed bathrooms at Green Docks due to 
vandalism. Beth Henderson is resigning effective immediately. 



 

 

Police-Chief Gordon Temple - Completed the MCOLES audit which reviews hiring, policy & 
procedures, continuing education, and body cams. Passed with no corrective actions needed. Summit 
Fire Protections finished installing the alarm system. Final inspection to be later this week or next 
week. They have a 24-hour monitoring system, do we want it? Would be a separate yearly fee. 
Summit will provide information and the price. The heating and cooling system currently has no fresh 
air coming into the building, a plan has been identified to correct our system. 
 
Old business: 
Neil Hammerbacher recommends that we stay with Gabridge for the audit this year and sign the 
engagement letter. No RFP will be sent out.  
Motion:  Decker  Support:  Fisher   Approved by roll call vote. 
(No Maves, Hutchison – Yes Fisher, Smith, Decker) 
 
ESTA policy – A letter was sent out to all employees. 
ESTA employee handbook changes – Tabled 
 
Police Chief Contract (Hutchison removed himself from the board table) Contract is for the period of 
7/1/2025 – 6/30/2028 (3 years) with a 4% per year increase and addition of longevity pay. 
Motion: Fisher   Support:  Decker Approved:  All in favor with Abstain:  Hutchison 
 
Motion to approve Silversmith contract with the math correction that was in the contract last month.  
Motion:  Maves   Support:  Smith  Approved:  All in favor 
 
Update on Budget Amendment/Transfer from last meeting – Bring back to next meeting with the 
correct amount for the budget amendment and the money to come out of the general fund. 
 
New O & M rates – still getting data together – will be ready for hearing on budget, hearing set for 
June 19, 2025 at 6:30 pm. 
 
New business:  
Sewer construction bills & change orders – Phase I, Phase II, WWTP  
Elmer’s for $152,255.81, Matt’s Underground for $111,859.15, Grand Traverse Construction for 
$377,352.35 includes USDA Phase I & Phase II, EGLE and EPA, Performance Engineers 
Phase I for $21,627.75 and Phase II for $27,512.15, and Change Order No 4 for Grand Traverse 
Construction for bulk water, rebar, and new completion date for $18,710.40. 
Motion:  Maves  Support:  Hutchison   Approved:  All in favor 
 
Policy change POL 4.4 – to change Last Tuesday in June to Prior to End of June. (our fiscal 
year)(General Appropriation Act adopted and posts final budget on the township web page.) 
Motion:  Maves  Support:  Hutchison   Approved:  All in favor 
 
June meeting dates will be Thursday, June 12 at 7pm for budget workshop 
Thursday, June 19 at 6:30 for Special Meeting to adopt O & M rate, and budget hearing  
Wednesday, June 25 at 6:30 budget adoption 
Tuesday, July 8th for the July meeting. 
Motion to change June 26 meeting to July 8 at 7pm for our July township meeting. 
Motion:  Maves  Support:  Fisher   Approved:  All in favor 
 
M & M maintenance agreement is a preventative maintenance agreement with 4 visits per year for a 
total of $2,950 annually shared 3 ways ($983.33 each) - police, library, and township. Police and 



 

 

library already agreed they would like to do this. This agreement is subject to annual price increase 
with renewal contract to be sent at least 30 days prior to the expiration. Does not need to be bid 
because of the dollar amount. 
Motion:  Decker   Support:  Maves   Approved:  All in favor 
 
Building maintenance agreement has been approved by the library and police. The only change from 
prior years is that the expenses will be pro-rated at the end of each month. The cost share is library 
40%, police 30%, and township 30%. 
Motion:  Maves   Support:  Smith   Approved:  All in favor 
 
Local township approval needed for the 2025 fireworks permit. 
Motion:  Fisher   Support:  Maves   Approved:  All in favor 
 
Cemetery rates – to increase the rates that were presented last month for the cemetery and increase 
the admin fee from $30 to $50 dollars. 
Motion:  Decker   Support:  Fisher   Approved:  All in favor 
 
FYI from discussion last month, we do have an emergency expenses POL 4.85 authorizing the 
supervisor to authorize emergency expenditures (except – “not to excerpt $20,000 when deemed 
essential due to the imminent threat to the health, safety and welfare of the township”). 
 
Motion to replace both flanges at lift station #2 at $8,285.70 for the flanges and the confined spaces 
team cost for a total not to exceed $17,285.70. When the actual bill is paid a motion will be made to 
transfer the amount from the RRI account to the general pool account. 
Motion:  Fisher   Support:  Smith   Approved:  All in favor 
 
REU for laundromat – Tabled 
 
MTA Membership to pay for our annual dues $5,774.00, (not the legal defense fund amount of 
$173.22), and $1,900 for the premium pass which allows unlimited access to the on-line training 
courses (including volunteers). For a total of $7,674.00 
Motion:  Smith    Support:  Hutchison   Approved:  All in favor 
 
Job posting for parks was discussed under the parks report.  
 
Motion to give Karen Decker a $2.00 increase effective with the 1st pay after the new budget year.  
Motion:  Decker   Support:  Smith   Approved:  All in favor 
 
Public comments (3 minutes per individual) – one comment 
 
Board comments – none. 
 
Motion to adjourn at 8:39 pm. 
Motion:  Maves        Approved:  All in favor 
 
Recording Secretary, Chris Green 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Laura Decker, Clerk 
Trudy Maves, Supervisor 



 

6/18/2025 

TUSCARORA TOWNSHIP 
3546 S. Straits Hwy, Indian River, MI  49749 
JUNE 12, 2025, 7PM BUDGET WORKSHOP 

PROPOSED MEETING MINUTES 
 

 

Call to order:  Supervisor Maves called the meeting to order at 7:15 pm and led the pledge of 
allegiance.  
 
Roll call:  Present:  Fisher, Maves, Smith, Hutchison, and Decker. All present. 
 
Purpose of this meeting is to review and make changes to the presented 2025-2026 budget. 
The proposed budget was reviewed section by section with questions being asked and requests 
for several amounts to be reviewed.  
 
Motion to adjourn at 9:50 pm. 
Motion:  Fisher       Approved:  All in favor 
 
Recording Secretary, Chris Green 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Laura Decker, Clerk 
Trudy Maves, Supervisor 
                                                                          
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reports 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bills/Invoices/Revenue & Expenditure Report 

  



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR TUSCARORA TOWNSHIP 1/2Page:06/19/2025 12:39 PM
User: CHRIS
DB: Tuscarora

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/19/2025 - 06/19/2025
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN

 BANK CODE: POOL

JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Ref#

NOpen75.00 75.00 06/19/202506/18/20254 FRONT CREDIT UNION10931
NOpen142.75 142.75 06/01/202506/01/2025ANAVON TECHNOLOGY GROUP10941
NOpen50.00 50.00 07/19/202505/20/2025ARSL10943
NOpen14,917.50 14,917.50 07/10/202506/10/2025BIOTECH10950
NOpen55.48 55.48 06/19/202505/27/2025CENGAGE LEARNING INC/GALE10933
NOpen46.74 46.74 06/19/202506/01/2025CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT10934
NOpen213.00 213.00 06/26/202506/19/2025CINCINNATI LIFE INSURANCE CO.10949
NOpen70.00 70.00 06/19/202506/02/2025CLASSIC CLEANING10938
NOpen500.00 500.00 07/01/202507/01/2025CREATIVEBUG FOR LIBRARIES10942
NOpen143.09 143.09 06/19/202506/03/2025DEMCO10939
NOpen220.80 220.80 06/30/202505/31/2025EMMET COUNTY10909
NOpen59.78 59.78 06/19/202505/31/2025GANNETT MICHIGAN LOCALIQ10932
NOpen5,608.48 5,608.48 07/08/202506/09/2025GFL ENVIRONMENTAL/NORTHERN A-110951
NOpen256.18 256.18 06/19/202506/16/2025KELSEY RUTKOWSKI10930
NOpen175.70 175.70 06/19/202506/02/2025KELSEY RUTKOWSKI10937

431.88 431.88 Total for vendor 00685 - KELSEY RUTKOWSKI:

NOpen787.50 787.50 07/01/202506/01/2025KIRK & HUTH, P.C.10916
NOpen180.00 180.00 06/19/202506/03/2025LEIGH ANN SOCHA10947
NOpen60.00 60.00 06/19/202506/03/2025LEIGH ANN SOCHA10948

240.00 240.00 Total for vendor 00598 - LEIGH ANN SOCHA:

NOpen500.00 500.00 06/20/202506/18/2025MATT WHITENER10946
NOpen138.00 138.00 07/11/202506/02/2025MCG WEB DEVELOPMENT10902
NOpen125.00 125.00 07/13/202506/13/2025MIDWEST COLLABORATIVE FOR LIBRARY 10944
NOpen358.64 358.64 06/19/202505/31/2025MIDWEST TAPE LLC10936
NOpen1,553.00 1,553.00 06/29/202505/30/2025MITCHELL GRAPHICS INC10940
NOpen3,771.29 3,771.29 06/24/202505/29/2025PNC VISA10921
NOpen105.07 105.07 07/02/202506/02/2025POLLARD'S QUICK LUBE10899
NOpen558.05 558.05 06/27/202505/28/2025POLLARD'S QUICK LUBE10900

663.12 663.12 Total for vendor 00385 - POLLARD'S QUICK LUBE:

NOpen9,292.00 9,292.00 07/16/202506/16/2025SILVERSMITH DATA10953
NOpen401.95 401.95 07/02/202506/03/2025USA BLUE BOOK10905
NOpen266.46 266.46 06/19/202506/17/2025VANS BUSINESS MACHINE10935
NOpen452.00 452.00 07/06/202506/17/2025WINDEMULLER10952

41,083.46 41,083.46 # of Invoices:              30  # Due:    30           Totals:
0.00 0.00 # of Credit Memos:           0  # Due:     0           Totals:

41,083.46 41,083.46 Net of Invoices and Credit Memos:



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR TUSCARORA TOWNSHIP 2/2Page:06/19/2025 12:39 PM
User: CHRIS
DB: Tuscarora

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/19/2025 - 06/19/2025
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN

 BANK CODE: POOL

JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Ref#

--- TOTALS BY FUND ---

1,379.02 1,379.02 101 - GENERAL FUND
2,018.81 2,018.81 207 - POLICE FUND

500.00 500.00 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
6,176.20 6,176.20 271 - LIBRARY FUND

31,009.43 31,009.43 590 - SEWER FUND

--- TOTALS BY DEPT/ACTIVITY ---

9,292.00 9,292.00 000 - 
859.13 859.13 101 - TOWNSHIP BOARD
30.09 30.09 253 - TREASURER

269.00 269.00 257 - ASSESSOR
2,018.81 2,018.81 301 - POLICE

220.80 220.80 528 - RUBBISH COLLECTION-DISPOSAL
21,717.43 21,717.43 536 - WATER AND SEWER SYSTEMS

500.00 500.00 728 - DDA
6,176.20 6,176.20 790 - LIBRARY



\,

TAN}{ER ELECTRIC thic

I35i S. STRAITS I{WY
INDIAN RIVEI{. h4I 49719

2l l -2ls-7700

Bill To

ATTN: BOB KI{AMER
Tuscarcra Torvnship
P0 Bux ll0
Incliun River, }ll'197{9

Date lnvoice #

l,'l 6i1.0?5 6r67

Ship To

Lili Station
Club Rd

lndian Rivcr. illichgian 49?49

lnvoice

Terms Due Date

Nct 15 l,'l lif 0:-i

Description oly Rate Amounl

INVOICI fOR Et.ECTR]CAI. WORK PtRf ORlvl[D 0];
8/1713014 & 1,1 1i2025

INVOICE I'Olt AIIDITIONAL WORK i{hQtllRED P[It IIEAD

& FNJNT TOfi. ADDITIOT.AL ALARMINC. IJIVIHITOBNCY STOP

AND RE]VIOTI: M0NITORINC THAT \1AS ]\J()I PART OI:

oRrclNAt- [sTI].'lAT[ SCOPg OF WORK DITAILED ( AS

NOTIID I}i LAST INVOI('E #52S8)

- ALS0 i\DDED AN(lTilIR IRANSfORI'IER CONTI{OL

CABINIT TI,IAT DID NOT HAVL ENCiI-ICH I:{) VOLT PO\\'TR

,\VAII-ABI-I] FOR IIOT]K I-:P OT I]LOCK HEATER I)
CJTNIITATOI{

LAllol{-josll
LABOT{. \YILL
LABOI{.I"UKII
LABOR. JASON

--*---']
,,{

/, "fJ;. \J ,' {L/
t*'7 * z \-I *'

ftecervec
;:r\/

JAI{ ?410/'" a

tlscaf"]rd t :,ru,r:,,r1-

6.1i
-t

t.:s
3.5

t0{1,00

100.00
100.0{)
100.00

(r15.0(l

,t{)0.{.x)

-1: i.00
150.00

ThlnL rou Jirr vour hurittc.sl Total

ffi 'fiurlq $ -Lri.r'i rr*,;+rL ',L;ui l{s}S.Edlf
f Pd, 6r lr.p ,, (-tu.i+
+ Cr"'clit lntl Dcbrr carli tr,,nsactiotls ruill itrctlr;r 'l'ln let'

A 1.5,h iat* I'cc rvill bc aclded tu invoice totul altcr i{) da-vs of notr-prv0ictt(, non-negt:tiuble.

Payments/Credits

Balance Due

Page 1



]'AhlI{ER ELECTRIC iNC

I]5I S. STRAITS HWY.
II{DIA}. RIVER. J\,II 49749
23 r-231r-2700

Bill To

ATTN: B0tl $lit.4.lvlER
l-uscari:ra To*T rsh i J:

P0 Box 120
Irriiiurr ltner. lv{l -t97JQ

lnvoice
Date lnvoice #

l; I 6i:025 6l 67

Ship To

Liti Station
Club Rd
.L:dian Itiver. il.lichgiln .t?7"19

Terms Due Dale

Nct 15 113 U1025

Description Qtv Rate Amouni

tr4ATIRI.,\L5 I-:SED

30 FE[T- B[LnEr\., COLIMS CABLii
]O F[FT. I I{,,? POWIK CONTROL rABLE
4- l" \v P SIALS
r0 rli[T- l8 3 l_Ow \'0t-T wil.ll:
l - I I V{)Lt' At."AI{.tl. 5Tr{OUL LICI{T
1- \Ollitl;\LLY OPtN L--STOP ('ONTA|T
6 Fr[T- DIN R;\lL
2- Q0 t:o BREAKIRS
I - 2.000 WATT. .tlt0 VOLT x I ?0 VOLT TR;\NSFOR\.| UR
4- lI.l"xl0 STAINLIISS llut.TS. LOCK PUTS
I 5 I- E[T- ,r l] THHN \\ Iltl
l- EiltERfiENCY STOP BUTTON .c. BOX KIT
I- I2{I \TOLT SINCLE RECEPTACLES
I. SINCLE RICIPTACI.I PLATI:
:- lit" cH"4sI xtPPt-t:s
]. DIN I"UST H'JLDIItS
:- 7 AMP ljUStS
1. I: VOLT LED
l- VAN SllPPI.lhS

2.:09.:8 ) ,i\o la

'lhank y,ru lbr v.iur busirr,.:.s;'

Total sr.soe:*

& Credit and Dcbit card tranractitrus rvill incur ii.lto lcc.
A I.591, late fec rvill he aijdcrl 1o invoice trrtll rltcr-i0 davs ol'nr:n-palnrcnr, ron-nesi)ti;rb6.

PaymentslCredits 
so.o()

Balance Due s-i,Boe..t

Page 2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Old Business 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

New Business 












	Insert from: "C694.pdf"
	Economic Development
	Plan for Success
	Example Goals for Economic Development
	Build Stronger and Better, Together : Key Participants
	Next Steps

	Insert from: "85E1.pdf"
	Cheboygan County Hazard Mitigation Plan Adoption Resolution

	Insert from: "bills.pdf"
	Slide 1
	Slide 2




